

Behaviour policy and statement of behaviour principles: Our Behaviour Charter

Head Teacher: Mr M Brown

Chair of Governors: Mr S Fitz-Gerald

	Date	Name	Signature
Policy Date	July 2023		
	(updated January 2024)		
Review Date	July 2024		
Review Period	Annually (unless guidelines have been updated)		
Lead Person	Deputy Head Teacher	Ruth Makepeace	
Prepared by	Deputy Head Teacher	Ruth Makepeace	
Verified by	Head Teacher	Matthew Brown	
Approved by	Chair of Governors	Stuart Fitz-Gerald	

Contents

I. Our Vision	4
2. Aims	4
3. Legislation, statutory requirements and statutory guidance	4
4. Definitions	5
5. Bullying	5
6. Roles and responsibilities	7
6.1 The governing body	7
6.2 The headteacher	7
6.3 Teachers and staff	7
6.4 Parents and carers	8
6.5 Students	8
7. School Behaviour curriculum	8
7.1 Learning Behaviour	8
7.2 Expectations for lessons and learning	9
7.3 Mobile phones	10
7.4 Smoking and Vaping	11
8. Responding to behaviour	11
8.1 Classroom management	11
8.2 Safeguarding	12
8.3 Responding to good behaviour	12
8.4 Responding to misbehaviour	13
8.5 Trips	13
8.6 Reasonable force	13
8.7 Confiscation, searches, screening	13
8.8 Off-site misbehaviour	14
8.9 Online misbehaviour	14
8.10 Suspected criminal behaviour	
8.11 Zero-tolerance approach to sexual harassment and sexual violence	15
8.12 Malicious allegations	15
9. Serious sanctions	16
9.1 Detention	16
9.2 Parking Room	16
9.3 Last Call	16
9.4 Internal suspension	17
9.5 External Suspension	17
9.6 Permanent Exclusion	17
9.7 Clarity House	17
9.8 Managed Moves	18
10. Responding to misbehaviour from students with SEND	18
10.1 Recognising the impact of SEND on behaviour	
10.2 Adapting sanctions for students with SEND	18
10.3 Considering whether a student displaying challenging behaviour may have unidentified SEND	19

10.4 Students with an education, health and care (EHC) plan	
II. Supporting students following a sanction	
12. Student transition	19
12.1 Inducting incoming students	19
12.2 Preparing outgoing students for transition	19
13. Uniform and Equipment	19
14. I raining	
15. Monitoring arrangements	2
15.1 Monitoring and evaluating school behaviour	21
15.2 Monitoring this policy	22
16. Links with other policies	22
Appendix I. Home School Agreement	23
Appendix 2. Rewards	25
Appendix 2. Rewards	26
Appendix 4. Report Types	27

I. Our Vision

Our belief is that every young person has the right to learn in a calm, safe, purposeful and supportive environment where high expectations of outstanding behaviour, self-discipline and respect for others support all members of the community to Raise Aspirations and Release Potential. Every young person must feel safe and free to express themselves without fear of bullying or intimidation. Students must understand that actions have consequences, either positive or negative, and that they are responsible for their actions. Equally, all staff have the right to work in an environment where outstanding behaviour, self-discipline and respect for others are the expectation. Staff must feel safe and free to exert their authority

2. Aims

This policy aims to:

- > Outline our vision for a positive culture that promotes excellent behaviour, ensuring that all students have the opportunity to learn in a calm, safe and purposeful environment
- > Establish a whole-school approach to maintaining high standards of behaviour that reflect the values of the school through effective use of rewards and sanctions
- > Set out the expectations and consequences of student behaviour
- > Ensure there is a clear set of rules/boundaries that everyone follows consistently with clear procedures regarding sanctions and clear lines of accountability/responsibility.
- > Provide a consistent approach to behaviour management that is applied equally to all students
- > Define what we consider to be unacceptable behaviour, including bullying and discrimination
- > Ensure that the outcomes of incidents of poor behaviour are clearly communicated.

3. Legislation, statutory requirements and statutory guidance

This policy is based on legislation and advice from the Department for Education (DfE) on:

- > Behaviour and discipline in schools: advice for headteachers and school staff, 2016
- > Behaviour in schools: advice for headteachers and school staff 2022
- > Searching, screening and confiscation: advice for schools 2022
- > The Equality Act 2010
- > Keeping Children Safe in Education
- > Exclusion from maintained schools, academies and student referral units in England 2017
- > Suspension and permanent exclusion from maintained schools, academies and student referral units in England, including student movement 2022
- > Use of reasonable force in schools
- > Supporting students with medical conditions at school

It is also based on the Special Educational Needs and Disability (SEND) Code of Practice.

In addition, this policy is based on:

DfE guidance explaining that academies should publish their behaviour policy and anti-bullying strategy

4. Definitions

Misbehaviour is defined as:

- > Disruption in lessons, in corridors between lessons, and at break and lunchtimes
- > Non-completion of classwork or homework
- > Poor attitude
- > Incorrect uniform

Serious misbehaviour is defined as:

- > Repeated breaches of the school rules
- > Any form of bullying
- > Vandalism
- > Theft
- > Fighting
- > Smoking and vaping
- > Racist, sexist, homophobic or discriminatory behaviour
- > Sexual violence
- > Sexual harassment, meaning unwanted conduct of a sexual nature, such as:
 - Sexual comments
 - Sexual jokes or taunting
 - Physical behaviour like interfering with clothes
 - Online sexual harassment, such as unwanted sexual comments and messages (including on social media), sharing of nude or semi-nude images and/or videos, or sharing of unwanted explicit content
- > Possession of any prohibited items. These are:
 - Knives or weapons
 - Alcohol
 - Illegal drugs
 - Stolen items
 - Tobacco and cigarette papers
 - Fireworks
 - Pornographic images
 - Any article a staff member reasonably suspects has been, or is likely to be, used to commit an offence, or to cause personal injury to, or damage to the property of, any person (including the student)

As a school, we may also search for (but not limited to):

- Mobile/electronic devices
- Aerosols/body sprays
- Vapes
- Medicines
- Energy drinks

5. Bullying

Bullying is defined as the repetitive, intentional harming of one person or group by another person or group, where the relationship involves an imbalance of power.

Bullying is, therefore:

> Deliberately hurtful

- > Repeated, often over a period of time
- > Difficult to defend against

Bullying can include:

TYPE OF BULLYING	DEFINITION
Emotional	Being unfriendly, excluding, tormenting
Physical	Hitting, kicking, pushing, taking another's belongings, any use of violence
Prejudice-based and discriminatory, including:	Taunts, gestures, graffiti or physical abuse focused on a particular characteristic (e.g. gender, race, sexuality)
• Racial	
• Faith-based	
 Gendered (sexist) 	
 Homophobic/biphobic 	
 Transphobic 	
 Disability-based 	
Sexual	Explicit sexual remarks, display of sexual material, sexual gestures, unwanted physical attention, comments about sexual reputation or performance, or inappropriate touching
Direct or indirect verbal	Name-calling, sarcasm, spreading rumours, teasing
Cyber-bullying	Bullying that takes place online, such as through social networking sites, messaging apps or gaming sites

(See the Antibullying policy)

Bullying is NOT when young people of similar age and size find themselves in conflict. Examples of this could include disagreeing, friendship issues, name calling between two friends, play fighting, having an argument or even fighting, without imbalance of power or use of intimidation.

The experience of conflict or disagreement is upsetting for those involved but it is not bullying. However, unresolved disagreements can escalate when a person retaliates by constantly picking on another. A pattern of bullying can emerge if conflict is not dealt with at an early stage.

Students and parents / carers are encouraged to report all incidents and to keep evidence where possible such as keeping written records or copies of texts / emails and printouts of postings on social networking sites. Bullying on social networking sites can also become a matter for the police.

Procedures

- Staff refer incidents of bullying to the Student Welfare Team who will apply support measures and sanctions following consultation with Leadership Team.
- Every incident is investigated as soon as possible.
- All parties are encouraged to write an account of the incident in writing.
- The school records all bullying incidents on the bullying and safeguarding logs. These are reported to Governors at every Full Governors meetings.

• Parent/carers' concerns about bullying are dealt with promptly.

Each year in the autumn term we remind all our students to take action if they feel they are being bullied. These messages are also reinforced throughout the year, not just during Anti-bullying week in November;

students can use the QR code found on posters to report an incident of bullying, either by the student directly or of an incident they have witnessed, to report their concerns discreetly.

6. Roles and responsibilities

6.1 The governing body

The governing body is responsible for monitoring this behaviour policy's effectiveness and holding the headteacher to account for its implementation.

6.2 The headteacher

The headteacher is responsible for:

- > Reviewing and approving this behaviour policy
- > Ensuring that the school environment encourages positive behaviour
- > Ensuring that staff deal effectively with poor behaviour
- > Monitoring how staff implement this policy to ensure rewards and sanctions are applied consistently to all groups of students
- > Ensuring that all staff understand the behavioural expectations and the importance of maintaining them
- > Providing new staff with a clear induction into the school's behavioural culture to ensure they understand its rules and routines, and how best to support all students to participate fully
- > Offering appropriate training in behaviour management, and the impact of special educational needs and disabilities (SEND) and mental health needs on behaviour, to any staff who require it, so they can fulfil their duties set out in this policy
- > Ensuring this policy works alongside the safeguarding policy to offer students both sanctions and support when necessary
- > Ensuring that the data from the behaviour log is reviewed regularly, to make sure that no groups of students are being disproportionately impacted by this policy (see Section 15.1)

6.3 Teachers and staff

Staff are responsible for:

- > Creating a calm, safe and purposeful environment for students
- > Establishing and maintaining clear boundaries of acceptable student behaviour
- > Implementing the behaviour policy consistently
- > Communicating the school's expectations, routines, values and standards through teaching behaviour and in every interaction with students
- > Modelling expected behaviour and positive relationships
- > Providing a personalised approach to the specific behavioural needs of particular students
- > Considering their own behaviour on the school culture and how they can uphold school rules and expectations
- > Recording behaviour incidents promptly on the Schools Management Information System (SIMs)

> Challenging students to meet the school's expectations

The leadership team (LT) will support staff in responding to behaviour incidents.

6.4 Parents and carers

Parents and carers, where possible, should:

- > Get to know the school's behaviour policy and reinforce it at home where appropriate
- > Support their child in adhering to the school's behaviour policy
- > Inform the school of any changes in circumstances that may affect their child's behaviour
- > Discuss any behavioural concerns with the class teacher/student support officer promptly
- > Take part in any pastoral work following misbehaviour (for example: attending reviews of specific behaviour interventions)
- > Work collaboratively with the school to reinforce the school's positive behaviour expectations
- > Take part in the life of the school and its culture

The school will endeavour to build a positive relationship with parents and carers by keeping them informed about developments in their child's behaviour and the school's policy whilst working in collaboration with them to tackle behavioural issues.

6.5 Students

Students will be made aware of the following during their induction into the behaviour culture:

- > The expected standard of behaviour they should be displaying at school
- > That they have a duty to follow the behaviour policy
- > The school's key rules and routines
- > The rewards they can earn for meeting the behaviour standard, and the consequences they will face if they don't meet the standard
- > The pastoral support that is available to them to help them meet the behavioural standards

Students will be supported to meet the behaviour standards and will be provided with repeated induction sessions wherever appropriate.

Students will be supported to develop an understanding of the school's behaviour policy and wider culture.

Students will be asked to give feedback on their experience of the behaviour culture to support the evaluation, improvement and implementation of the behaviour policy.

Extra support and induction will be provided for students who are mid-phase arrivals.

7. School behaviour curriculum

7.1 Learning behaviours:

A learning behaviour can be thought of as a behaviour that is necessary in order for a person to learn effectively in the group setting of the classroom (Ellis and Todd, 2018).

The development of social, emotional and behavioural skills is fundamental to support learning and the development of these skills is consistently reinforced in school.

It is important to be aware of and understand young people and their:

> relationship with themselves (how they feel about themselves and their self-confidence as a learner).

- > relationship with others (how they interact socially and academically with all others in their class and school).
- > relationship with the curriculum (how accessible they feel a lesson is, how best they think they learn).

A positive attitude to learning leads to success. Outstanding behaviour in all aspects of school life has a positive impact on the life of the school community. Our expectation is that all students have respect for each other, the environment and themselves.

All students have the right to come to school and to learn in an environment which is not disrupted by the poor behaviour of a minority of students.

All students are expected to attend regularly and be punctual to school and lessons.

The expectation is that if **any** member of staff asks a student to do something it is done and there is not a comment back or questioning of their decision.

"Doing as I am told when I am told to do it."

7.2 Expectations for lessons and learning

Rules for Learning

The Rules for Learning encompass the expectations set out in the behaviour Failure to follow these rules will lead to a sanction in line with our policy.

- > Follow instructions quietly and respectfully at the first time of asking (doing as I am told when I am told to do it).
- Make learning a team effort. Students have the right to learn; teachers have the right to teach.
- > Be ready to learn Student Planner on desk and all necessary equipment ready for learning.
- > Take pride and strive for constant improvement.
- > Respect all staff and students at all times.

Expectations in lessons:

Readiness and respect procedures (entrance & exit transitions)

- All teachers stand by the door between lessons.
- > All teachers greet the students on entrance.
- > All teachers check uniform on entry.
- > All students settle down with a task on the board or reflective learning from last lesson.
- All students are ready to learn. Planners and conduct cards on tables.

Exit procedures:

- > 3 minutes before the end of lesson-finish what you are doing.
- 2 minutes before the end of the lesson pack bags and check for rubbish.
- I minute before the end of the lesson Stand behind chairs in silence and be ready to be dismissed.

Students leave calmly, safely and in a purposeful manner

Expectations out of lessons:

Our expectation is that all students behave in an appropriate way around the school where safety is of paramount importance.

This can be achieved by:

- > walking quietly from lesson to lesson and around the school in a responsible manner.
- > walking on the left in all corridors and using the correct stairways.
- > conforming to any instruction issued by a member of staff (doing as I am told when I am told to do it).
- > eating in the designated eating areas, at the designated times, e.g. not in corridors.
- > wearing correct uniform and having your Student Planner with you.
- > having respect for others and for the environment.
- respecting the school environment including toilets.
- > putting litter in to the correct bins.
- > only using positive language.

Expectations of staff:

It is the responsibility of **all** staff to promote outstanding behaviour and to challenge poor behaviour. Students come to school to learn and it is the role of all staff to ensure that students are able to do this by:

- > ensuring all lessons are planned thoroughly, taking in to account the needs of all learners, with the aim of providing outstanding learning opportunities for all.
- > actively engaging students in their learning.
- > developing students' learning skills so that learning becomes increasingly independent.
- > using rewards effectively to praise and to promote outstanding behaviour.
- > having high expectations and focusing on raising achievement with all students through monitoring and intervention.
- > providing a high-quality learning environment which supports student learning in a settled and purposeful atmosphere.
- > providing support for students during social times by leading additional activities.
- > challenging any student who does not conform to the School behaviour code in terms of behaviour within lessons and out of lessons.
- > supporting the students' emotional well-being within the learning and teaching environment.
- > modifying and adapting the curriculum to meet the diverse individual needs of young people.
- being prepared to contact parents/carers and meet with parents/carers to discuss issues of concern.
- > adhering to the dress code.

Where appropriate and reasonable, adjustments may be made to routines within the curriculum to ensure all students can meet behavioural expectations in the curriculum.

7.3 Mobile phones

As a school we wish to limit mobile phone use in school to mitigate risks of distraction, disruption, bullying and abuse. Mobile devices must remain switched off while on school site, this includes break and lunchtimes. Any student seen with their mobile device on school site at any time will have their device confiscated. All students will digitally sign the mobile phone agreement.

Devices must not be seen or heard.

- > Staff can allow students to use their mobile device as part of their learning in lesson.
- > Students with diabetes can access their device for glucose readings.

Any mobile phone or other electrical device is brought to school at the owner's risk.

The school will not compensate students for the loss or damage of any mobile phone or electrical devices.

If students bring their mobile to school, then they should keep their mobile turned off and at the bottom of their backpack, or in the zipped pocket of their blazer. If a **smart watch** this must be set to School Mode.

Students must adhere to the school's acceptable use agreement for mobile phone use.

Devices confiscated will be stored in a secure location in the school office.

In any half term:

- > On the first occasion that a phone is confiscated the student will receive an B2 (30 minute) detention. The student will be permitted to collect the phone from the school office at the end of the day. On subsequent occasions a B3 detention (60 minute) will be issued and the device will be retained by the school in a secure location until collected by a nominated adult.
- > All parents will be informed by the school office when a device requires collection.
- If mobile phone use continues to be a concern, families will be invited into school to meet with the leadership team.
- If a student fails to hand over their mobile device, they will be issued an B4 for the rest of the day the mobile device will also be confiscated.
- > Before and after school students are not allowed to use their device outside of the school building as they enter or exit the site.
- If a student needs to visit the toilet during lessons, they will be told to hand over their phone to the class teacher.

(Schools are permitted to confiscate phones from students under sections 91 and 94 of the Education and Inspections Act 2006)

7.4 Smoking and Vaping

The school is a "non-smoking" site. Any student found or suspected of smoking/vaping or in possession of smoking paraphernalia including e-cigarettes and vapor cigarettes on school site or in the surrounding area, will be externally suspended (B7).

(see the No Smoking policy)

8. Responding to behaviour

8.1 Classroom management

Teaching and associate staff are responsible for setting the tone and context for positive behaviour within the school.

They will:

- > Create and maintain a stimulating environment that encourages students to be engaged
- > Display and refer to the Rules for Learning (see Section 7.2)
- > Develop a positive relationship with students, which will include:
 - Greeting students at their classroom door at the start of lessons
 - Establishing clear routines
 - Communicating expectations of behaviour in ways other than verbally
 - Highlighting and promoting good behaviour
 - Concluding the day positively and starting the next day afresh
 - Use the school's sanctions system for dealing with low-level disruption
 - Using positive reinforcement

8.2 Safeguarding

The school recognises that changes in behaviour may be an indicator that a student is in need of help or protection.

We will consider whether a student's misbehaviour may be linked to them suffering, or being likely to suffer, significant harm.

Where this may be the case, we will follow our child protection and safeguarding policy, and consider whether pastoral support, an early help intervention or a referral to children's social care is appropriate.

(See safeguarding and child protection policy).

8.3 Responding to good behaviour

When a student's behaviour meets or goes above and beyond the expected behaviour standard, staff will recognise it with positive recognition and reward. This provides an opportunity for all staff to reinforce the school's positive culture and ethos.

Students will be rewarded for demonstrating a Growth Mindset approach to learning. We recognise that hard work and perseverance is the key to success; intelligence is not fixed and anything is possible. Rewards are issued by staff to acknowledge, encourage and sustain the effort our students invest in their education. The Growth Mindset reward categories are:

- Showing resilience in learning.
- > Asking great questions.
- > Climbing out of the pit!
- > Taking risks in learning.
- > A positive reaction to feedback results in redrafted, improved work.
- > Outstanding effort.
- Contributing to the school community.

Positive reinforcements and rewards will be applied clearly and fairly to reinforce the routines, expectations and norms of the school's behaviour culture.

Positive behaviour will be rewarded with:

- Verbal praise
- > Communicating praise to parents via a phone call home or written correspondence/postcards
- > Certificates, badges, prize ceremonies or special assemblies
- > Reward points 'R's awarded during lesson time and for participation in various school initiatives and attendance to extracurricular clubs during lunchtime and afterschool

Reward points are also issued for outstanding behaviour and promoting positive values. The behaviour categories are:

- Contribution to school parents evening
- Random acts of kindness
- Promoting positive student values
- Outstanding attendance
- > Positions of responsibility, such as being entrusted with a particular decision or project
- Whole-class or year group rewards
- > Endeavour: Students who demonstrate a consistent application of a Growth Mindset to learning, evidenced by their termly progress updates, will be invited to take part in the activities of the Endeavour group. Students who are selected for Endeavour are invited for an afternoon treat to celebrate the importance of a Growth Mindset approach.

(See Appendix 2 for further details of rewards)

8.4 Responding to misbehaviour

When a student's behaviour falls below the standard that can reasonably be expected of them, staff will respond in order to restore a purposeful and safe learning environment, and to prevent recurrence of misbehaviour.

Staff will endeavour to create a consistent environment by always challenging behaviour that falls short of the standards, and by responding in a fair and proportionate manner, so students know with certainty that misbehaviour will always be addressed.

De-escalation techniques can be used to help prevent further behaviour issues arising.

All students will be treated equitably under the policy, with any factors that contributed to the behavioural incident identified and taken into account.

When giving behaviour sanctions, staff will also consider what support could be offered to a student to help them to meet behaviour standards in the future.

8.5 Trips

Students are reminded that they are representing the school and as such are expected to display excellent behaviour and attitude. Any students whose behaviour is a cause for concern before the trip will not be permitted to attend. Any monies paid will be non-refundable.

Note: if a trip is oversubscribed then reward and behaviour points will be considered together with reasons before a student is permitted to be considered for a place.

8.6 Reasonable force

Reasonable force covers a range of interventions that involve physical contact with students. All members of staff have a duty to use reasonable force, in the following circumstances, to prevent a student from:

- > Causing disorder
- > Hurting themselves or others
- > Damaging property
- > Committing an offence

Incidents of reasonable force must:

- > Always be used as a last resort
- > Be applied using the minimum amount of force and for the minimum amount of time possible
- > Be used in a way that maintains the safety and dignity of all concerned
- > Never be used as a form of punishment
- > Be recorded and reported to parents

When considering using reasonable force, staff should, in considering the risks, carefully recognise any specific vulnerabilities of the student, including SEND, mental health needs or medical conditions.

8.7 Confiscation, searches, screening

Searching, screening and confiscation is conducted in line with the DfE's <u>latest guidance on searching</u>, screening and confiscation. (See Confiscation, Searching, screening and confiscation policy)

8.8 Off-site misbehaviour

Our expectation is that students are ambassadors of the school and we have high expectations of their behaviour in the local area.

The school will respond to all non-criminal bad behaviour and bullying which occurs off the school premises or online and which is witnessed by a staff member or reported to the school. Sanctions will be applied if there is any unacceptable behaviour when the student is:

- > Taking part in any school organised or school related activity
- > Travelling to or from school
- > Wearing the school uniform
- In some other way identifiable as a student at the school

Sanctions may also be applied where a student has misbehaved off-site, at any time, whether or not the conditions above apply, if the misbehaviour:

- > Could have repercussions for the orderly running of the school
- > Poses a threat to another student
- > Could adversely affect the reputation of the school

Sanctions will only be given out on school premises or elsewhere when the student is under the lawful control of a staff member (e.g. on a school-organised trip).

It is up to the school to decide whether it is appropriate to notify the police or the Anti-Social Behaviour Coordinator of the actions taken against the student.

8.9 Online misbehaviour

The school can issue behaviour sanctions to students for online misbehaviour including misuse of social media when:

- > It poses a threat or causes harm to another student
- > It could have repercussions for the orderly running of the school
- > It adversely affects the reputation of the school
- > The student is identifiable as a member of the school

Sanctions will only be given out on school premises or elsewhere when the student is under the lawful control of a staff member.

(See Acceptable Use Policy, AUP)

8.10 Suspected criminal behaviour

If a student is suspected of criminal behaviour, the school will make an initial assessment of whether to report the incident to the police.

When establishing the facts, the school will endeavour to preserve any relevant evidence to hand over to the police.

If a decision is made to report the matter to the police, the Headteacher/Designated Safeguarding Lead (DSL) will make the report.

The school will not interfere with any police action taken. However, the school may continue to follow its own investigation procedure and enforce sanctions, as long as it does not conflict with police action.

If a report to the police is made, the DSL will make a tandem report to children's social care, if appropriate.

8.11 Zero-tolerance approach to sexual harassment and sexual violence

The school will ensure that all incidents of sexual harassment and/or violence are met with a suitable response, and never ignored.

Students are encouraged to report anything that makes them uncomfortable, no matter how 'small' they feel it might be.

The school's response will be:

- > Proportionate
- Considered
- **>** Supportive
- > Decided on a case-by-case basis

The school has procedures in place to respond to any allegations or concerns regarding a child's safety or wellbeing. These include clear processes for:

- > Responding to a report
- > Carrying out risk assessments, where appropriate, to help determine whether to:
 - o Manage the incident internally
 - o Refer to early help
 - o Refer to children's social care
 - Report to the police

(Refer to our Safeguarding and Child Protection policy for more information)

8.12 Malicious allegations

Where a student makes an allegation against a member of staff and that allegation is shown to have been deliberately invented or malicious, the school will discipline the student in accordance with this policy.

Where a student makes an allegation of sexual violence or sexual harassment against another student and that allegation is shown to have been deliberately invented or malicious, the school will discipline the student in accordance with this policy.

In all cases where an allegation is determined to be unsubstantiated, unfounded, false or malicious, the school (in collaboration with the Local Authority Designated Officer (LADO), where relevant) will consider whether the student who made the allegation is in need of help, or the allegation may have been a cry for help. If so, a referral to children's social care may be appropriate.

The school will also consider the pastoral needs of staff and students accused of misconduct.

Please refer to our safeguarding and child protection policy and allegations of abuse against teachers and other staff policy for more information on responding to allegations of abuse against staff or other students.

9. Serious sanctions

9.1 Detention

Students can be issued a sanction/detention by any member of staff (teaching and associate), and are issued where a student's misbehaviour is unacceptable.

Students can be issued with detentions during break, after school or on weekends during term time.

If detentions are missed without reason, they will be escalated.

The school will decide whether it is necessary to inform the student's parents.

When imposing a detention, the school will consider whether doing so would:

- > Compromise the student's safety
- > Conflict with a medical appointment
- > Prevent the student from getting home safely
- > Interrupt the student's caring responsibilities

9.2 Parking Room

Where a student has been sanctioned but it is felt that they may benefit from some time out in a lesson, they can be directed to the departmental Parking Room to complete their work. This is a supportive measure, not a further sanction.

9.3 Last Call

In response to serious or persistent breaches of this policy, the school may remove the student from the classroom for a limited time. Last call is used for removal from a lesson by a senior member of staff.

Students who have been removed will continue to receive education under the supervision of a member of staff that is meaningful, but it may differ from the mainstream curriculum.

Removal is a serious sanction and will only be used in response to serious misbehaviour. Staff will only remove students from the classroom once other behavioural strategies have been attempted unless the behaviour is so extreme as to warrant immediate removal.

Removal can be used to:

- > Restore order if the student is being unreasonably disruptive
- > Maintain the safety of all students
- > Allow the disruptive student to continue their learning in a managed environment
- > Allow the disruptive student to regain calm in a safe space

Students who have been removed from the classroom are supervised by the Behaviour Mentor in Internal Exclusion for the remainder of that lesson.

The school will consider an alternative approach to behaviour management for students who are frequently removed from class, such as:

- > Meetings with behaviour mentors
- > Use of teaching assistants
- > Short term behaviour/subject reports (See Appendix 4)
- > Long term behaviour plans
- > Student support units
- > Multi-agency assessment

9.4 Internal suspension

Reflection and Refocus zone.

Internal suspension is monitored and run by the Behaviour Mentor (BM).

Internal suspension runs from 8.30am until 3.00pm every day. Students are expected to bring their usual school books and equipment for that day. Internal suspension is in a dedicated room and has access to its own toilet facilities. Students will not be allowed to access the main school building. Students will be met by the BM outside the Oasis entrance to be escorted to the Inclusion room.

During the day students will have breaks (at a different time to the main school) and a short walk around the school site. Students will hand in any mobile devices for the time period in Internal. They will work in silence. Work will be mostly related to the subjects studied that day and will be completed in their exercise books. There may be access to computers or other electronic devices if the student is in KS4 to enable completion of coursework etc.

Failure to follow the rules of Internal suspension will result in an B7 being issued.

9.5 External Suspension

Failure to attend an internal suspension, B4, in the designated area, at the specified date, will lead to an B7, External suspension. Each subsequent B7 will be longer than the previous, in any one year.

9.6 Permanent Exclusion

Can be considered for persistent breach of the Behaviour Charter and for first or 'one off disciplinary offences. These can include (but is not limited to):

- > serious actual or threatened violence against another student or member of staff.
- > substance abuse including possession of, use or supplying an illegal drug.
- > possession of an offensive weapon.
- intention to cause damage using flammable material e.g. matches, lighters, fireworks.

Before reaching a decision to exclude either permanently or for suspension, the Head Teacher will:

- > ensure that a full investigation has been conducted and, where possible, signed written statements taken from both the student involved and any witnesses, which may be used in a disciplinary meeting.
- > consider all the relevant facts and such evidence as may be available to support the allegations made, taking into account the school's behaviour policy.
- > ensure that the student has had the opportunity to give his or her version of events.
- > consult others, if necessary, being careful not to involve anyone who may have a role in any statutory review of his or her decision, for example members of the Governing Body Discipline Committee.
- > ensure that parents/carers are advised of the process and timescales.

(See Appendix 3 for further details of sanctions)

9.7 Clarity House

If a student gains over 150 behaviour points they will be logged for their first Clarity House sanction. Every subsequent 75 points the student will receive another Clarity House sanction.

At the 4th 'visit' to Clarity House a directed 6 to 12-week placement at New Horizons Academy, an alternative provision, may be put in place. This is to prevent permanent exclusion.

If the student gains a further 75 points after their 8th 'visit' to Clarity house in their school life, this will lead to permanent exclusion.

9.8 Managed Moves

A managed move is used to initiate a process which leads to the transfer of a student to another mainstream school permanently. Managed moves should only occur when it is in the student's best interests but can be ended by the recipient school at any point.

10. Responding to misbehaviour from students with SEND

10.1 Recognising the impact of SEND on behaviour

The school recognises that students' behaviour may be impacted by a special educational need or disability (SEND).

When incidents of misbehaviour arise, we will consider them in relation to a student's SEND, although we recognise that not every incident of misbehaviour will be connected to their SEND. Decisions on whether a student's SEND had an impact on an incident of misbehaviour will be made on a case-by-case basis.

When dealing with misbehaviour from students with SEND, especially where their SEND affects their understanding of behaviour, the school will balance their legal duties when making decisions about enforcing the behaviour policy. The legal duties include:

- > Taking reasonable steps to avoid causing any substantial disadvantage to a disabled student caused by the school's policies or practices (Equality Act 2010)
- > Using our best endeavours to meet the needs of students with SEND (Children and Families Act 2014)
- > If a student has an education, health and care (EHC) plan, the provisions set out in that plan must be secured and the school must co-operate with the local authority and other bodies

As part of meeting these duties, the school will anticipate, as far as possible, all likely triggers for misbehaviour, and put in place support to prevent these from occurring.

Any preventative measures will take into account the specific circumstances and requirements of the student concerned.

Our approach to anticipating and removing triggers for misbehaviour are based on advice from our SENDCO for students on the register of need. These may include:

- > Adjusting seating plans to allow a student with a visual or hearing impairment to sit in sight if the teacher
- > Short, planned movement breaks within sight of the classroom door
- > Training for staff in understanding conditions such as autism
- > Use of the quiet room in Oasis for students to regulate emotions when suffering sensory overload

10.2 Adapting sanctions for students with SEND

When considering a behavioural sanction for a student with SEND, the school will take into account:

- > Whether the student was unable to understand the rule or instruction?
- > Whether the student was unable to act differently at the time as a result of their SEND?
- > Whether the student is likely to behave aggressively due to their particular SEND?

If any of the above statements apply, the school will then assess if it is appropriate to use a sanction and if so, whether any reasonable adjustments need to be made to the sanction.

10.3 Considering whether a student displaying challenging behaviour may have unidentified SEND

The school's Special Educational Needs and Disabilities Co-ordinator (SENDCO) may evaluate a student who exhibits challenging behaviour to determine whether they have any underlying needs that are not currently being met.

Where necessary, support and advice will also be sought from specialist teachers, an educational psychologist, medical practitioners and/or others, to identify or support specific needs.

When acute needs are identified in a student, we will liaise with external agencies and plan support programmes for that child. We will work with parents to create the plan and review it on a regular basis.

10.4 Students with an education, health and care (EHC) plan

The provisions set out in the EHC plan must be secured and the school will co-operate with the local authority and other bodies.

If the school has a concern about the behaviour of a student with an EHC plan, it will make contact with the local authority to discuss the issue. If appropriate, the school may request an emergency review of the EHC plan.

II. Supporting students following a sanction

Following a sanction, the school will consider strategies to help students to understand how to improve their behaviour and meet the expectations of the school.

This could include:

- > Reintegration meeting between student and staff
- Restorative conversation between student and staff
- Daily contact with the students Student Support Officer (SSO)
- Being on report with personalised targets

12. Student transition

12.1 Inducting incoming students

The school will support incoming students to meet behaviour standards by offering an induction process to familiarise them with the behaviour policy and the wider school culture.

12.2 Preparing outgoing students for transition

To ensure a smooth transition to the next year and to ensure behaviour is continually monitored and the right support is in place, information related to student behaviour issues may be transferred to relevant staff at the start of the term or year.

13. Uniform and Equipment

The school believes that the uniform should reflect the school motto "Raising Aspirations, Releasing Potential", and should demonstrate visibly that our students are aiming for excellence in everything

that they do. We expect the very highest standards of dress for all students. Years 7-11 wear a uniform which is described in more detail below, and the Sixth Form have a dress code of either a trouser or skirt suit.

Our Uniform consists of:

- pleated (permanent pleated) navy skirt: knife pleat, stitched knife pleat, double kick pleated, box pleated, (Stain resistant recommended) and/or regular fit plain navy trousers. REQUIRED
- > plain white blouse/shirt. REQUIRED
- > regulation navy or red school V-neck sweatshirt with the Blackfen embroidered name. No other sweatshirt may be worn. OPTIONAL
- > regulation navy or red school cardigan with Blackfen embroidered name. No other cardigans may be worn. OPTIONAL
- a regulation blazer with school badge and the student's community flash on the central pocket. REQUIRED
- > socks may be black or navy; alternatively, tights may be worn and should be navy, black, or a shade of own natural skin tone; leggings of any colour may not be worn; socks/tights must be worn with shoes. NO WHITE SOCKS.
- > shoes should be: leather or leather-look; black, flat, plain and sensible i.e. not stilettos, no heels above 2 inches, nothing above the ankle bone and no large platforms; no form of Vans or Converse trainers are permitted, even if they are leather; trainers, boots, canvas style, leisure or backless shoes are not acceptable.
- outerwear for all year groups should consist of a **plain black or navy** coat, jacket, raincoat, anorak/cagoule or duffle coat, large logos or brand names are not permitted; denim, fur/ fake fur, leather/leather look or suede jackets are not allowed; hats, scarves, gloves are optional. Hijabs must be **plain black, red or navy.**
- > school bag plain black rucksack/backpack only
- hair decorations are optional, must be discreet and in plain black, red or navy. NOTE: in some subjects (e.g. Science, Technology etc) students will be expected to tie their hair back for safety reasons.
- Nail extensions/nail varnish and eyelash extensions are NOT allowed under any circumstances to enable IT to be used effectively, writing equipment to be held correctly and for safety reasons in lesson (e.g. Technology, Science and PE).
- ➤ Hair must be of a colour that can be found in natural hair.
- > Jewellery only ONE small pair of stud earrings allowed (see below for religious jewellery). A watch (if a smart watch this must be on school mode) may be worn and are encouraged, to be able to get to lessons on time and use as a mathematical resource.
- > one religious symbol may be worn discreetly (e.g. religious symbol on necklace to reflect faith worn under blouse/shirt, religious bangle).
- > sunglasses can only be worn outside when sunny. They should not be seen in school buildings.
- > students are not permitted to roll up the sleeves on their blazer and/or roll up the waistband of their skirt.

Items not conforming to criteria above will be confiscated and taken to school office.

Physical Education/Dance Kit

Basic Kit

- (Macron Andromeda) Navy round neck sports t-shirt with school badge. REQUIRED
- > (Macron Mesa) Navy Shorts. OPTIONAL

- > (Macron) Navy Leggings. REQUIRED
- > (Macron Nile) Navy Midlayer with school badge. OPTIONAL
- > (Macron Kasai) Navy joggers OPTIONAL
- Navy Football Socks and white trainer socks.
- Trainers

Students must bring a note from home to explain if they are excused from PE for any reason. They <u>must</u> still bring their PE Kit to school so that they can get changed and take part as an umpire, coach or organiser. Failure to bring a note or their PE kit will result in a sanction.

Non-Uniform Days

- There are two non-uniform days a year. All Communities in the school have charities that they support and non-uniform days allow money to be collected to support these charities. Parents will be notified in plenty of time when a non-uniform day has been decided. In most cases non-uniform days are held on the last day of a term.
- Note, on non-uniform days there is still a dress code: no short shorts, strappy tops, crop tops (i.e. tops with midriff on show). Dress should be appropriate to a school setting. If non-uniform dress causes concern in anyway, parents will be contacted to bring in appropriate clothing or students will be told to change into school uniform and sent home to change.

14. Training

All staff are provided with regular Continued Professional Development (CPD) opportunities to improve their practice.

As part of their induction process, our staff are provided with training on teaching and learning and managing behaviour

Behaviour management will also form part of continuing professional development.

15. Monitoring arrangements

15.1 Monitoring and evaluating school behaviour

The school will collect data on the following:

- > Behavioural incidents, including removal from the classroom
- > Attendance, permanent exclusion and suspension
- > Use of student support units, off-site directions and managed moves
- > Incidents of searching, screening and confiscation
- > Anonymous surveys for staff, students, governors, trustees and other stakeholders on their perceptions and experiences of the school behaviour culture

The data will be analysed monthly by the DHT & AHT on the Behaviour team

The data will be analysed from a variety of perspectives including:

- > At school level
- > By age group
- > At the level of individual members of staff
- > By time of day/week/term
- > By protected characteristic

The school will use the results of this analysis to make sure it is meeting its duties under the Equality Act 2010. If any trends or disparities between groups of students are identified by this analysis, the school will review its policies to tackle it.

15.2 Monitoring this policy

This behaviour policy will be reviewed by the Headteacher and Governing Body at least annually, or more frequently, if needed, to address findings from the monitoring of the behaviour data. At each review, the policy will be approved by the Headteacher & Governing Body.

16. Links with other policies

This behaviour policy is linked to the following policies:

- > Exclusions policy
- > Safeguarding and child protection policy
- > Mobile phone policy
- > Anti-bullying policy
- > Equality & Race equality Policy
- > Searching, Screening & Confiscation policy
- > No smoking policy
- > Use of reasonable force policy
- > Dealing with allegations of abuse against teachers and other staff
- > Acceptable Use Policy
- > Safeguarding Policy
- > Reporting Policy

Appendix I Home School Agreement

Student Name	Year	Form
	. • • • • • • • • •	

As a School

We will:

- value each student, provide a stimulating learning environment and challenging education
- encourage every student to develop a growth mind set in their learning and to see success and failure as equal partners in making progress at school
- promote values of self-discipline, courtesy and responsibility
- provide a clear framework for discipline
- regularly set, mark and monitor home learning and provide facilities for students to study outside school hours
- contact parents/carers if there is a problem with attendance, punctuality or equipment
- let parents/carers know about any concerns or problems that affect their child's learning or behaviour
- respond to home communications within 2 working days
- send home information, including termly Progress Updates and other information required by law
- arrange consultation evenings during which progress will be discussed
- keep parents/carers informed about school activities through the family Newsletter, letters home, email, text messaging and the Student Planner.

SignedHead Te	each [,]	acł
---------------	-------------------	-----

As a Parent/Carer

I will:

- · accept responsibility for my child's behaviour
- ensure my child attends school regularly, on time (10 minutes before session 1) in the correct school uniform including the school blazer, black leather or leather look shoes with a plain black or navy coat
- ensure my child does not wear any make up, nail varnish/extensions or false eyelashes
- ensure that my child hair accessories are plain and in school colours (black, navy or red)
- ensure that my child has the correct equipment necessary for all their lessons
- let the school know about concerns or problems that affect my child's learning
- support actively the school's approach to discipline and standards
- support my child in home learning and other opportunities for learning, in and out of school
- provide my child the time and the appropriate facilities to study at home
- check and sign my child's Student Planner each week and respond to communications where necessary
- attend all parents' evening and discussions about my child's progress
- provide an appropriate example for my child in my approach to home school communications
- take an interest in my child's life at school and encourage them to fulfil their potential

١	Signed	Pai	rent/(Car	ei
3	٠٠,٠٠٠			- u.	٠.

As a student

I will:

- arrive at school (10 minutes before session 1) and all lessons on time and aim for 100% attendance
- wear the correct school uniform including the school blazer, black leather/leather look shoes and a plain black or navy coat
- only wear plain discreet hair accessories in the school colours (black, navy or red)
- not wear make-up, nail varnish/extensions or false eyelashes
- speak and behave politely and with respect to all members of the school community

- follow instructions from staff without delay or argument
- look after my possessions, take care of my books and equipment and treat school property with respect
- work hard, make the best effort I can and show a positive attitude to learning
- complete my home learning and study regularly after school and ensure it is handed in on time
- keep my Student Planner up to date
- make sure my behaviour does not endanger the safety of myself and others or cause distress to anyone
- make the best use of my time at Blackfen School for Girls.

SignedStudent

It is the responsibility of **all** members of the school community to work together to promote outstanding behaviour in all aspects of the life of the school. The Home-School Agreement clearly outlines the responsibilities of students, parents/carers and the School. The Home-School Agreement is:

>agreed and endorsed by Governors.

>sent out to all parents/carers of new students in an August mailing (there is also a copy in the Student Planner).

signed by school, parent/carer and student and returned to school on admission.

>checked by the Tutor and filed.

>used in any meeting with student and/or parent/carer as appropriate.

If the student and/or parent/carer refuses to sign and acknowledge the importance of the Home-School Agreement the matter is referred to the Deputy Head or Assistant Head Teacher. Any unresolved issue is referred to the Governing body.

Appendix 2. Rewards

The level of Reward 'R' and examples of what/when the reward may be issued

R Verbal recognition for demonstrating positive behaviour or a Growth Mindset:

Good organisation at the start of the lesson

Demonstrating an interest and a keenness in the work

Random acts of kindness

Good manners

Growth mindset /behaviour categories listed

RI Good comment sticker, stamp or signature in the planner awarded for positive behaviour or a Growth Mindset

High levels of engagement

Attempting new challenges

Producing homework of an exceptional standard

Growth mindset /behaviour categories listed

- R2 Post card home awarded when a student consistently produces classwork and homework of outstanding effort demonstrating a positive Growth Mindset
- R3 Letter home, phone call or recognition in the newsletter awarded when a student consistently produces classwork and homework of consistently outstanding effort demonstrating a positive Growth Mindset
- R4 Certificate/badges in celebration assembly
 Take part in an Endeavour experience
 Awarded when a student consistently demonstrates a positive Growth Mindset
- R5 Family reward for a celebration event. Awarded for a positive Growth Mindset or exceptional circumstances

Appendix 3 - Sanctions

- B Behaviour incident recorded. 3xB per week = B2
- BI 15 min break time detention (on day of behaviour incident)
- B2 30-minute after school detention. (48 hours' notice) Student may be removed to Parking Room for some time out.
- B3 I-hour after school detention/Community Service (48 hours' notice)
- B4 Internal suspension. The decision has to be made by the DHT or AHT. Parents will be informed of sanction by phone.
- B5 I.5-hour Friday after school detention with a member of LT
- B6 2 hour Saturday morning detention with a member of LT
- B7 External suspension The decision has to be made by the DHT or AHT. Parents will be informed of sanction by phone. A re-integration meeting will follow the external suspension.

Sanctions may be issued for:

	Behaviour Incident
В	Incorrect Uniform
	Corridor misconduct
	Missing equipment
	Late to lesson (L2-5)
ВІ	Late to School (L1)
B2	Disrupting learning environment
	No homework
	3x B in a week
	No kit
	Insufficient classwork
	Unkindness
	Mobile Phone
	Wasting learning time
В3	Persistent Defiance
	Walking out of lesson
	Truancy (Lesson)
	Truancy (Community Time)
B4	Inappropriate Lashes /Nails
	Refusal to comply
	Repeated Last-Call in a day
B7	Smoking/Vaping
	EDI incident
	Bullying
	Physical abuse/Fighting

Appendix 4 - Report Types

Report types

Sometimes it is necessary to monitor the behaviour of students through use of reports. Levels for monitoring behaviour are:

Form Tutor report – Verbal and informal monitoring of specific individual students by the form tutor. These students should be raised as potential issues at regular meetings or to the Head of Year/Subject Leader/Faculty Leader. This needs to be logged on SIMs by the Form Tutor and SSO informed. Letter home to parents.

Student Support Officer report - Student is placed on report by SSO for 2 weeks. At the end of 2 weeks a review meeting must be held with the student and parents/carers. This is for any student with general behaviour concerns. This needs to be logged on SIMs by the SSO, (HoY to be advised if Year 7). Letter home to parents.

Head of Year report (Year 7 only)- Student is placed on report by HoY for 2 weeks. At the end of 2 weeks a review meeting must be held with the student and parents/carers. This is for any student with escalating behaviour concerns. This needs to be logged on SIMs by the HoY and SSO informed. Letter home to parents.

Student Welfare Manager report - Student is placed on report by SWM for 2 weeks. At the end of 2 weeks a review meeting must be held with the student and parents/carers. This is for any student with escalating behaviour concerns. This needs to be logged on SIMs by the SWM and SSO informed. Letter home to parents.

Growth Mindset report - Student is placed on report by SSO/HOY/SWM/LT for 2 weeks. At the end of 2 weeks a review meeting must be held with the student and parents/carers. This is for any student with escalating behaviour concerns or poor attitude to learning. This needs to be logged on SIMs by the HoY/LT and SSO informed. Letter home to parents.

Subject Leader report. – Student is placed on subject report by Subject Leader or Faculty Leader for 2 weeks. This must be used in response to concerns about the subject: behaviour/progress/learning. At the end of 2 weeks a review meeting must be held with the student and a letter must be sent home to parent/carer. This needs to be logged on SIMs by the subject leader and SSO informed.

Assistant Headteacher report – Student is placed on report by AHT for 2 weeks. At the end of 2 weeks a review meeting must be held with the student and parents/carers in person or by phone. This is for any student with escalating behaviour concerns resulting in a high number of sanctions and/or behaviour points. This needs to be logged on SIMs by the AHT and SSO informed.

Deputy Headteacher report – Student is placed on report by Leadership Team for 2 weeks. At the end of 2 weeks an in-person review meeting must be held with the student and parents/carers. This is for any student returning from suspension and escalated behaviour.

Students report to the relevant staff member or SSOs at the end of EVERY day whilst on report at the Attendance Office. Failure to attend will result in a sanction (B3). Students are expected to meet every target set for every lesson. Failure to do so will result in scaled sanctions as outlined on each report.